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U.S. Department of Justice

" United States Attorney
Disrict of Massachusetls

1 Courthause Way, Suice 9200
Boston, Mastschuteny 02250

April 4, 2000

Craig A. Gillen, Esqg.

Gillen Cromwell Wither & Brantley LLC
One Securities Centre, Suite 1050
3450 _Piedment Road, NE

ARtlanta, G2 30305

Nick Littlefield, Esqg.
Foley, Hoag & Eliot

1 Post Office Square
Boston, MA 02109 h

Re: United States v. Thomas M. Rodgers, Jr.

Dear Messrs Gillen and Littlefield:

This letter sets forth the Agreement between the United States
Attorney for the District of Massachusetts (“"the U.S. Attorney™)
and your client, Thomas M. Rodgers, Jr. (“Defendant*), in the
above-captioned case. The Agreement is as follows: B

1. Change 6f BPlea

At the earliest practicable date, Defendant shall waive
indictment and plead guilty to all counts of a three count
information in substantially the form attached, charging him with
violating the federal Food Drug & Cosmetic Act by: {a) owning and
operating an unregistered facility for the manufacture of drugs,
in violation of Title 21, United States Code., sections 321 (p) and
333(a) (1): (b) shipping an unapproved new drug in interstate
commerce, in violation of Title 21, United States Code, sections
331(d) and 333¢a) (1}; and shipping an adulterated drug in
interstate commerce, in violation of Title 21, United States
Code, sections 331(a) and 333(a)(l).

Defendant expressly and unequivocally admits that he in fact
committed the crimes charged in the Information, and is in fact
guilty of those offenses.

TELESULE L300 ‘ V604
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2. Penaltaies

Defendant fzces the followlng ma X i mur penaltles on each
count in the information: « :

1 year imprisonment;

$100,000 fine {(Class A Misdemeanoxr) ;
1 year supervised release;

$25 special zgsessment.

3. Sentencing Guidelines

The parties agree to jointly take the position that the
following provision of the United States Sentencing Guldellnes
applies:

§2N2.1 Violarions.of statutes and Requlations
— Dealing With Any Food, Drug, Biological
Product, Device, Cosmetic, or Agricultural
Product -

(a) Base Offense Level . . . . T

The United States will also take the position thabt the
following adjustments aleo apply:

§3a1.1 Vulnerable Victim

{b) TIf cthe defendant knew or should have known
that a victim of the coffenge was a vulnerable victim,

increase by 2 levels . . . . . . . . . . . . . L. L. L. 2
§3B1.1 Aggravating Role
(a) I1f the defendant was an organizer oxr leader
in any criminal activity other chan described in
[U.5.5.G. §3Bl1.1] (a) or (b}, increase by.2 levels . . . . 2

The U.S. Attorney’s agreement that the dlSPOSltlon set forth
below is appropriate in this case is based, in part. on
Defendant’s prompt acceptance of personal responsibility for the
offense (s} of conviction in this case.

The U.S. Attorney specifically may, at his sole option, he
released from his commitments under this Agreement, including,
but not limited to, his agreement that paragraph 4 constitutes
the appropriate disposition of this case. if at any time between
his execution of this Agreement and sentencing, Defendant:

(a) Fails to admit a complete facrual basis for the
plea:
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{by Fails to truthfully adm¥t hls conduct in the
offenses of convmctlon, .

(c} Falsely denies, or frivolously contests, relevant
conduct for which Defendant 15 accountable under

U.5.5.G. § 1B1.3:

(d} Fails to provide truthful information about his
financial status:

. (e} Gives false or misleading testimony in any
' proceeding relating to the criminal conduct -
charged in this case and any relevant conduct for
which Defendant is accountable under U.5.5.G. §

n
.LD.L Jl

(f) Engages in acts which form a basis for finding
that Defendant has wbstructed or impeded the
administration of justice under U.S5.S.G. § 3Cl.1;

(g} Intentibnally fails teo appear in Court or violates
any condition of release:;

(h) Commits a crime; and/or

(i) Transfers any asset protected under any provision
of this Agreement.

Defendant expressly understands that he may not withdraw his
plea of guilty, unless the Court rejects this Agreement under
Fed. R. Crim. P. 11 (e} (4).

4. Aqgreed Disposition

The U.S. Attorney .and Défendant agree pursuant to Fed. R.
Crim. P. 1l(e) (1) (C) that the following is the appropriate
disposition of this case:

(2) a period of probation between 1 and 3 years:
(b) $75.00 mandatory .special assessment; and
(c) a fine of between $1,000 and $10,000.
The U.S. Attorney and Defendant are unaware of any person

entitled to restitution pursuant to Title 16 United States Code
Section 3663.
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The U.S. Attorney and Defendant agree that there is no basis
for a departure from the sentencing range established by the
United States SenﬁchLng Guidelines.

«

S. Payment of Mandatory Special Assessment

Defendant agrees to pay the mandatory special assessment to
the Clerk of the Court on or before the date of sentencing,
unless Defendant establishes to the satisfaction of the Ccurt
that Defendant is financially unable to do so.

6. Waiver of Rights to Appeal and to Bring Collateral

Qh@llénge

Defendant is aware that he has the right to challenge his
sentence and guilty plea on direct appeal. Defendant is also
aware that he may, in some circumstances, be able to argue that
his plea should be set aside, or his sentence set aside or
reduced, in @ collateral challenge>~ {such as pursuant to a motion
under 28 U.S.C. §2255). .

In consideration of the concessions made by the U.S.
Attorney in this Agreement, Defendant knowingly and voluntarily
waives his right to appeal or collaterally challenge:

(1) Defendant’s guilty plea and any other aspect of
Defendant’s conviction, including, but not limited
to, any rulings on pretrial suppression motions or
any other pretrial dispositions of motions and

issues; and

(2) The adoption by the District Court at sentencing
of any of the positions found in paragraph 3 which
will be advocated by the U.S. Attorney with regard
to offense conduct, adjustments and/or criminal
history under the U.S. Sentencing Guidelines.

Defendant’s waiver of rights to appeal and to bring
collateral challenges shall not apply to appeals or challenges
based on new legal principles in First Circuit or Supreme Court
cases decided after the date of this Agreement which are held by
the First Circuit or Supreme Court to have retroactive effect.

This Agreement does not affect the rights or obligations of
the United States as set forth in 18 U.S.C. §$3742(b}, and the
U-.S. Attorney therefore retains his appeal rights.
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7. Waiver of Hyde Amendnent Claim

Defendant is aware that 111 Stat. 2440, 2520 (1887}, the so-
called "Hyde Amendment,” authorizZes courts in crimlnal cases to
award td certain prevailing defendants attorneys’ fees and other
litigation expenses. In exchange for concessions made by the
U.S. Attorney in this Agreement, Defendant voluntarily and
knowingly waives any clalm that he might assert under thlS

statute.

8. Cogperatian -

a. Terms of Cooperation

Defendant agrees to cooperate fully with law enforcement
agents and government attorneys. He must provide complete and
truthful information to all law enforcement personnel. If his
testimony is requested, he must testify truthfully and completely
before any grand jury, and at any heaxlng and trial. Defendant
must answer all questions put to him by any law enforcement
agents or government attorneys and must not withhold any
information. He must not attempt to protect any person or entity
through false information or omission, or to implicate falsely
any person or entity. Upon request, he must furnish all
documents, objects and other evidence in his possession, custody
or control that are relevant to the government®s inguiries. He
also agrees to waive any claim of privilege, including attorney-
client privilege, with respect to communications to and from
counsel in connection with Private Biologicals Corporatlon and/or

in connection with cell culture supernatants prior to August 16,

1995 (i.e.. the commencement .of the Grand Jury’s investigation of
this case).

Defendant understands that he has a right to have counsel
present when communicating with representatives of the government
concerning the criminal conditt with which he has been charged.
To facilitate his cooperation, Defendant hereby knowingly and
voluntarily waives this right with respect to all debriefings by
law enforcement agents and government attorneys and all
appearances to testify. This waiver may be revoked at any time
by a specific request by Defendant or his counsel without
otherwise affecting the terms or enforceability of this
Agreement.

Defendant understands that the date of Defendant's
sentencing is within the sole discretion of the Court and that
this Agreement may require Defendant's cooperation to continue
even after Defendant has been sentenced. Defendant's fajilure to
continue to cooperate pursuant to the terms of this Agreement
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after sentence is imposed shall constitute a breach of this
Agreement by Defendant.

b., Letter Immunity -

In return for Defendant’s full and truthful cooperation, the
U.5. Attorney agrees not to use any information provided by
Defendant pursuant to this Agreement (or any information directly
or indirectly derived therefrom) against Defendant in any
criminal case except in a prosecution (1)} for perjury or
obstruction of justice, or for making a false statement after the
date of this Agreement; or (2) for an act of physical violence
against the person of another, or conspiracy to commit any such
act of violence. The U.S. Attrorney reserves the right to

respond fully and completely to all requests for information by
the District Court and U.S. Probation Office in this case. BAll
such disclosures, however, shall be made subject to the
provisions constraining the use of this information by the .
District Court and U.S. Probation Qffice contained in U.S$.5.G.
§1Bl.8(a) and the commentary thexeto. Notwithstanding the
provisions of U.S.S.G. §1B1.8(b) (5) and the commentary thereto,
the U.S. Attorney agrees to take’ the position that at the time of
sentencing anformation provided by Defendant pursuant to this
Agreement should not be used either in determining where within
the applicable guideline range to sentence Defendant oxr in
determining whether, or to what extent, a departure from the

Sentencing Guidelines is warranted.

If the U.S. Attorney determines that Defendant has breached
this Agreement by making any false, incomplete or misleading
statement, or by providing any false, incomplete or misleading
information to any law enforcement personnel, grand jury or
court, the U.S. Attorney may terminate this Agreement as set
forth below, and may also prosecute Defendant for any and all
offenses that could be charged against him in the District of
Massachusetts, including, but not limited to, false statements
and perjury. o

9. Probation Department Not Bound By Agreement

The sentencing disposition agreed upon by the parties and
their respective calculations under the Sentencing Guidelines are
not binding upon the United States Probation Office. Defendant’s
plea will be tendered pursuvant to Fed. R. Crim. P. 11l (e) (1) (C}.
Defendant cannot withdraw his plea of guilty unless.the
sentencing judge rejects this Agreement. If the sentencing judge
.rejects this Agreement, this Agreement shall be null and void at

the ‘'option of either the United States or Defendant. In this
regard, Defendant hereby waives any defense to any charges which
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he might otherwise have under any statute of limitations or the
Speedy Trial Act.

10. Civil Liability

By entering into this Agreemeént; the U.S. Attorney does not

compromise any civil liability, including but not limited to any
tax liability, which Defendant may have incurred or may incur as
a result of hig conduct and his plea of guilty to the charges

specified in paragraph 1 of this Agreement.

11. Withdrawal of Plea By Defendant -

Should Defendant move to withdraw his guilry plea at any
time, this Agreement shall be null and void at the option of the

U.5. Attorney.

~12. Breach of Agreement

If the U.S. Attorney deterxmin&s that Derfendant has failed to
comply with any provision of this Agreement, has violated any
condition of his pretrial release, or has committed any crime
following his execution of this Agreement, the U.S. Attorney may,
a2t his sole option, be released from his commitments under this
Agreement in their entirety by notifying Defendant, through
counsel or otherwise, in writing. The U.S. Attorney may also
pursue al) remedies available to him under the law, irrespective
of whether he elects to be released from his commitments under
this BAgreement. Further, the U.S. Attorney may pursue any and
all charges which have been, or are to be, dismissed pursuant to
this Agreement. Defendant recognizes that no such breach by him
of an obligation under this Agreement shall give rise to grounds
for withdrawal of. his guilty plea. Defendant understands thart,
should he breach any provision of this agreement, the U.S.
Attorney will have the right to use against Defendant before any
grand jury, at any trial or hearing, or for sentencing purposes,
any statements which may be made by him, and any information,
materials, documents or objects which may be provided by him to
the government subsequent to this Agreement, or pursuant to the
proffer agreement dated April 4, 2000, without any limitation.
In chis regard. Defendant hereby waives any defense to any
charges which he might otherwise have under any statute of
limitations or the Speedy Trial Act.

13. Who Is Bound By Agreement

This Agreement is limited to the U.S. Attorney for the
District of Massachusetts, and cannot and does not bind the
ACTorney General of the United States or any other federal, state
or local prosecutive authorities.
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14. Conmplete Agreenent

This letter contains the complete and only agreement between
the pmarties. No promises, représentations or agreements have
been made other than those set forth in this letter and in the
proffer letter dated April 4, 2000. This Agreement supersedes
prior understandings, if any, of the parties, whether written or
oral, with the sole exception of those contained in the proffer
letter dated April) 4, 2000. This Agreement can be modified or
supplemented only in a written memorandum signed by the parties

or on the record in court.

-

If this letter .accurately reflects the Agreement between the
U.S. Attorney and Defendant, please have Defendant sign the

Acknowledgment of Agreement below. Please also sign below as
Witness. Return the original of this letter to Assistant U.S.

Attorney "Pauvl G, Levensorr:

= Very truly yours,

DONALD K. STERN :
United States Attorney

et ] "

JAMES B. FARMER

Assistant U.S. Attorney

Chief,
Criminal Division

STEPHEN P. HEYMANN
Assistant U.S. Attorney
Deputy Chief,

Criminal Division

PAUL G. LEVENSON

ADAM J. BOOKBINDER
Assistant U.S. Attorneys

ACKNOWLEDGMENT OF PLEA AGREEMENT

I have read this letter in its. entirety and discussed it
with my attorney. I hereby acknowledge that it fully sets forth
my agreement with the United States Attorney‘s QOffice for the
District of Massachusetts. I further state that no additional
promises or representations have been made to me by any official
of the United States in connection with this matter. I understand
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the crimes to which I have egreed to plead guilty, the maximum
penalties for those offenses znd Senténcing Guideline penalties
potentially applicable to them. I am satisfied with the legal
representation provided to me:«by my attorney. We' have had
sufficient time to meet and discuss my case. We have discussed
the charges against me, possible defenses I might have, the .terms
of this Plea Agreement and whether . should go to trial. I am
entering into this Agreement freely, voluntarily, and knowingly
because I am guilty of the offenses to which I am pleading guilty

and I believe this Agreement is in my best intgrest.

/’“\«4{4f”
THOMAS M. RODGEHE JR.Y
Defendant

Date: %\““}\ f?——ccC

I certify that Thomas M. Rodgers, Jr. has read this

Agreement and that we have discussed its meaning. I believe he

understands the Agreement and is entering into the Agreement

freely, voluntarily and knowingly.
4//<%ziii'(//;//fii;”f/

Cfaig GilYelf, Esq.
" Atto ey for Defendant
Thomas M. Rodgers, Jr.

¥X;L\(~?‘f1’1»'}1i:\(\h'

Niek Littlefield, Esq.
Attorney for Defendant
Thomas M. Rodgers, Jr.




